ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE HEALTH AND SOCI AL SERVI CES STANDI NG COWM TTEE
March 12, 2009
3:04 p.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Bob Herron, Co-Chair
Representative Wes Kel |l er, Co-Chair
Representati ve John Coghil
Representative Bob Lynn
Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representati ve Sharon Ci ssha
Representati ve Li ndsey Hol nes

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 2
"An Act relating to the issuance of a certificate of birth
resulting in a stillbirth.™

- MOVED CSHB 2 (HSS) QUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 50

"An Act relating to limtations on nmandatory overtine for
registered nurses and licensed practical nurses in health care
facilities; and providing for an effective date."

- HEARD AND HELD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: HB 2
SHORT TI TLE: BI RTH CERTI FI CATE FOR STI LLBI RTH
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) GATTO

01/ 20/ 09 (H) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 9/ 09
01/ 20/ 09 (H) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
01/ 20/ 09 (H) HSS, JUD

02/ 26/ 09 (H) HSS AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 106

02/ 26/ 09 (H) Heard & Hel d

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -1- March 12, 2009



02/ 26/ 09 (H) M NUTE( HSS)
03/ 12/ 09 (H) HSS AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: HB 50

SHORT TITLE: LIM T OVERTI ME FOR REG STERED NURSES

SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) WLSON, GARA, TUCK, PETERSEN,
LYNN, SEATON, GATTO, ClI SSNA, MUNOZ, GARDNER

01/ 20/ 09 (H) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 9/ 09

01/ 20/ 09 (H) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 20/ 09 (H) HSS, FIN

03/ 12/ 09 (H) HSS AT 3:00 PM CAP| TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

SANDRA W LSON, Staff

to Representative Carl Gatto

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Spoke about the proposed CS to HB 2 on
behalf of the prine sponsor, Representative Carl Gatto, and
responded to questions.

REPRESENTATI VE CARL GATTO

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Spoke as the prinme sponsor of HB 2.

REPRESENTATI VE PEGGY W LSON

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Introduced HB 50 as the joint prinme
sponsor.

REBECCA ROONEY, St aff

to Representative Peggy WI son

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions about HB 50.

DR. PATRI CK NCLAN

Provi dence Hospita

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 50.

REPRESENTATI VE BERTA GARDENER
Al aska State Legislature

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 2- March 12, 2009



Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as a joint prine sponsor of
50.

EVANCELYN DOTOVAI N, President & CEO

Al aska Native Health Board ( ANHB)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 50.

DEBBI E THOVWPSON, Executive Director

Al aska Nurses Associ ation

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified about HB 50.

MARI E ORI A
Anchor age, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 50.

STACY ALLEN

Laborers' Local 341

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 50.

CHRI STI E ARTUSO, Director of Neurosciences
Provi dence Al aska Medi cal Center

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified about HB 50.

MARY STACKHOUSE

Al aska Nurses Associ ation

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified about HB 50.

CAROL CLAUSSON
Anchor age, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 50.

Cl NDY ALKI RE, Assistant Chief Nurse Executive

Provi dence Al aska Medi cal Center

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 50.

MARI LYN EDWARDS, Operating Room O inical Manager
Provi dence Al aska Medi cal Center

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified about HB 50.

HB

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 3- March 12, 2009



ROGER LEWERENZ, RN

Provi dence Al aska Medi cal Center

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 50.

GENEVA EDM STON, Associ ate Adm ni strator

Denali Center, Fairbanks Menorial Hospital

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 50.

BRENDA FRANZ, Director of |1CU and Energency
Fai r banks Menori al Hospital

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified about HB 50.

DONNA PHI LLIPS, RN
G rdwood, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 50.

JOHN BRI NGHURST, Adm ni strat or

Pet er sburg Medi cal Center

Pet er sburg, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified about HB 50.

VENDY CONRADI, RN
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 50.

RCD BETI T, President & CEO

Al aska State Hospital and Nursing Home Associ ati on ( ASHNHA)
Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 50

LAUREE MORTON
Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 50.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

3:04:28 PM

CO CHAIR WES KELLER called the House Health and Social Services
St andi ng Committee neet i ng to or der at 3: 04 p. m
Representatives Keller, Herron, Lynn, Coghill, and Seaton were

present at the call to order. Representatives Ci ssna and Hol nes
arrived as the neeting was in progress.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -4- March 12, 2009



HB 2- Bl RTH CERTI FI CATE FOR STI LLBI RTH

3: 05: 07 PM

CO CHAI R KELLER announced that the first order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 2, "An Act relating to the issuance of a
certificate of birth resulting in a stillbirth.” [ Before the
conmttee was CSHB 2, Version R the working docunent. ]

3:05:49 PM

CO CHAI R HERRON noved to adopt the proposed conmittee substitute
(CS) for HB 2, version 26-LS0003\S, M schel, 3/5/09, as the
wor ki ng docunent .

3:06: 04 PM
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON obj ected for the purpose of discussion.
3:06:19 PM

SANDRA WLSON, Staff to Representative Carl Gatto, Al aska State
Legi slature, explained that the changes in Version S included
all references to "stillborn" were renoved, and the definition
of "stillbirth" in subsection (h), paragraph (1) was now the
same definition as AS 18. 50. 240.

3:07: 04 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON renoved his objection. There being no
further objection, Version S was adopted as the working
docunent .

3:07:16 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CARL GATTO, Al aska State Legislature, said that
the bill had been approved by the Alaska House of
Representatives during the 25th Legislature, but he opined that
the reason it had not passed out of the Senate due to concern
that the bill was pro-life or pro-choice. He pointed out that
the bill had no connection to pro-life or pro-choice, and that
it was witten for nothers.

3:08:17 PM

CO CHAI R KELLER opened public testinony.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 5- March 12, 2009



3:08:29 PM

CO CHAI R KELLER cl osed public testinony.

3:08:42 PM

CO CHAIR HERRON noved to report CSHB 2, Version 26-LS0003\S,
M schel 3/ 5/ 09, out of committee W th i ndi vi dual
recomendati ons and the acconpanying zero fiscal notes. There

being no objection, CSHB 2 (HSS) was reported from the House
Heal th and Soci al Services Standing Conmttee.

HB 50-LIM T OVERTI ME FOR REGQ STERED NURSES

3:09:52 PM

CO CHAI R KELLER announced that the final order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 50, "An Act relating to limtations on
mandatory overtine for registered nurses and |icensed practica
nurses in health care facilities; and providing for an effective
date."

3:10: 20 PM

REPRESENTATI VE PEGGY W LSON, Al aska State Legislature, explained
that HB 50 would prevent Alaska Registered and Licensed

Practical Nurses from being forced to work overtine. She
defined overtine as "work beyond an agreed to predeterm ned
regularly scheduled shift." She offered her opinion that this
woul d protect patients from the dangers caused by overworked
nur ses. She warned that a standard staffing tool for "nost
hospitals in the state" was the use of forced, involuntary
overtinme and required "on-tinme" call, as this was |ess expensive

than hiring nore full time nurses. She stated that HB 50 woul d
not allow a nurse to be coerced to work beyond a 14 hour shift,
wor k beyond 80 hours in a 14 day period, or accept overtine that
woul d j eopardi ze patient or enployee safety. She al so expl ai ned
that a nurse nust be allowed at |east 10 consecutive hours of

off-duty tinme imediately followng a scheduled shift. She
detailed the exceptions to include an "unforeseen energency
situation,” overtime on a nedical transport aircraft, and an

occasi onal special event for a school.
3:14: 26 PM

REPRESENTATI VE WLSON suggested the three npbst inportant
questions to be: are nurses working overtine inmrediately

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 6- March 12, 2009



following a 12 hour work period; are nurses working nore than 14
consecutive hours; and, do nurses go to on-call stat us
i medi ately followng a regular shift. She opined that nurses
were working nore hours with | ess help.

3:17: 28 PM

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON reported that nurses felt subjected to
mandatory on-call duties and forced overtinme, and she declared
that nurses had an ever present fear of retaliation if they
reported conplaints. She noted an Alaska Nurses Association
survey which nentioned that over 80 percent of nurses reported
to be forced to work overtinme, and all of the nurses surveyed
reported that mandatory on-call was required. She predicted
that this led to burn-out and contributed to the shortage of
nur ses.

3:19: 34 PM

REPRESENTATIVE WLSON noted that other professions had work
schedule limtations inposed by the |egislature. She affirnmed
that 15 states had enacted simlar |egislation. She reported

that nurses were three tinmes nore likely to nake an error when
shifts lasted nore than 12.5 hours.

3:22:12 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN noted that he had a conflict of interest, as
two of his daughters were regi stered nurses.

3:22:33 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked for an explanation of page 3, lines
9 & 10, Section 2 (4).

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON explained that a nurse would agree to a
schedul e before it was published.

3:23:43 PM

REBECCA ROONEY, Staff to Representative Peggy WIson, Al aska
State Legislature, said that the nurses would testify about
this.

3:24: 05 PM

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -7- March 12, 2009



CO CHAIR HERRON referred to a letter from the Al aska Native
Health Board, dated March 6, 2009. [Included in nenbers’
packets. ] He noted that ANHB expressed "deep reservations over
HB 50" and he asked Representative WIlson to remark on two
points regarding the reasons that simlar |egislation had been
adopted in 15 states: (1) out of concern that hospitals m ght be
under-hiring; and (2) that mandatory overtine rules were used as
a collective bargaining tactic. He asked if the wunder-hiring
and col l ective bargaining tactics were issues in Al aska.

3:26:01 PM

REPRESENTATIVE WLSON replied that she did not know if sone
hospitals were under-hired. She opined that an increase to the
shortage of nurses would lead to an under-hired dil emma. She
offered her belief that nurses would be attracted to a state
with safeguards in place, and would help alleviate the nursing
short age.

3:26:49 PM

CO CHAIR KELLER asked if there was data to support that nurses
mgrated to states with saf eguards.

3:27: 09 PM
REPRESENTATI VE WLSON replied that there was not yet any data.
3:27:25 PM

CO- CHAIR KELLER referred to the Alaska Native Tribal Health
Consortium (ANTHC) position paper, dated March 9, 2009.
[ ncluded in menbers' packets.] He asked Representative WI son
to coorment on the first paragraph on page 2, "The bill provides
no new resources and no new options."

3:28:12 PM

REPRESENTATIVE WLSON replied that she disagreed wth the
statenent. She explained that there were new options, as HB 50
would protect nurses from retaliation for refusal to work
overti ne.

3:30: 02 PM

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA asked about the suitability of HB 50 for
rural Al aska.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 8- March 12, 2009



3:31:26 PM

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON said that, even though npbst states had
[imted the work day to 12 hours, HB 50 would limt the work day
to 14 hours.

3:32:21 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CI SSNA referred to the list of exceptions, and
asked if these were designed for rural Al aska.

3:33:17 PM

REPRESENTATIVE WLSON, in response to Representative G ssna,
noted that the exceptions were not for a specific group, but
were intended to maintain safety for everyone.

3:34:47 PM
CO CHAI R KELLER opened public testinony.
3:35: 06 PM

DR. PATRICK NOLAN, Providence Hospital, comented that nurses
wor ked |long hard hours. He accepted the correlation between
fatigue and errors, and noted that this was a safety issue. He
offered his belief that a predictive schedule was inportant to
attracting nurses. He noted that he had subnmitted a letter with
comments on HB 50, in which he quoted the National Institute for
Cccupational Safety and Health comments about high error rates
with overtine work. [Included in the nenbers' packets.] He
opined that HB 50 would be conducive to nurses working in high
stress situations.

3:39: 02 PM

REPRESENTATI VE BERTA GARDENER, Al aska State Legislature, said
that prior testinony had convinced her that hospitals used this
as a cost control tool. She stressed the need for a limt on
mandatory overtine and mandatory call. She agreed that rura
Al aska had speci al needs.

3:41:18 PM

EVANGELYN DOTOMAI N, President & CEO Al aska Native Health Board
(ANHB), said that Alaska Native Health Board enployed 7000

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -9- March 12, 2009



peopl e and served nore than 130,000 patients. She praised the
Tribal health providers and nurses, and their dedication to

provi de high-quality care. She expressed concerns that HB 50
woul d hurt patient care in rural Al aska. She expl ai ned that
should a nurse decide that they don't want to work overtinme, it
could often nean that the shift was not covered. She pointed
out that rural health providers did not have the sane resource
as urban providers to call in other off-duty nurses, to call
tenporary "agency" nurses on short notice, or to send patients
to other facilities. She surm sed that this could be a reason
that no rural states had adopted this |egislation. She

expressed concern for the increased cost to Tribal health
providers if they were forced to over hire regular shift nurses,
fly in tenporary nurses at the last mnute, or transfer patients
to an urban provider. She opined that HB 50 had been adopted by
states concerned that wurban hospitals wunder-hired and abused
mandatory overtine as a control for payroll and benefit costs,
or as a collective bargaining tactic. She acknow edged t hat
there were chronic challenges for nurse staffing in a renote,
rural location, but she denied that this was a tactic used by
Tribal health providers. She observed that nursing was a "tough
profession,” but that the challenges cane with the healthcare
territory, and she added that physicians, adm nistrators,
technicians, and clerks also adjusted their scheduling to neet
the needs of the patients. She suggested that the nandatory
overtime issues could be addressed in enploynent agreenents.
[Letters to committee included in nmenbers' packets.]

3:46: 46 PM

DEBBI E THOWSON, Executive Director, Alaska Nurses Association
stated that she was a professional registered nurse, and that
she had worked as an operating room nurse. She enphasized that
nurses wuld not I|eave patients wthout coverage in an
ener gency. She reported that her extensive interviews wth
nurses throughout Al aska indicated that 100 percent agreed that
mandatory overtinme was a problem which affected the decision to
work in acute care. She relayed that hospital personnel had
suggested addressing this in enploynent agreenents, yet nurses
had been told that this was not a negotiable issue. She asked
if patient safety was any less of a concern in rural or urban

envi ronnent s. She referred to SB 139, which offered financial
incentives for recruitnment in hard to fill health care jobs, and
she suggested that these could be used for staffing the rura
ar eas. She explained that it was necessary "to have a good
patient - nurse ratio in order to have a quality patient
out cone. "

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 10- March 12, 2009



3:52: 37 PM

MARIE ORIA said that she worked in a residential treatnent
center wthout acute nedical concerns. She said that she does
not have mandatory overtinme, and that she has not been called
during her off time to do nmandatory overtine. She observed that
the current economic situation was financially overwhel mng, and
that HB 50 would Iimt her work tinme opportunities.

3:58:21 PM

STACY ALLEN, Laborers' Local 341, said that she was required to
accept mandatory on-call on the weekends. She acknow edged t hat
al t hough she coul d choose her on-call tine, this neant that she
woul d be responsible to work 16 hour shifts. She shared that

ot her nurses had nentioned that nmandatory on call was a reason
to "l ook around for sonmething else to do because it was too
exhausting." She opined that nost hospitals did not choose to
use mandatory overtinme as a nmanagenent tool, but that it was "a
relatively easy thing to do.”™ She confirmed the difficulty for
refusal to work overtinme know ng that a patient may be
abandoned. She expressed the support of Laborers' Local 341 for
HB 50.

4:02:32 PM

CHRI STIE ARTUSO, Director of Neurosciences, Providence Al aska
Medi cal Center, said that she was also a national nenber on the
Board of Directors for the Certification Corporation of the
American Association of Critical Care Nurses, which she
described as the largest national specialty nursing association,
representing over 500,000 registered nurses working in critica
care and acute care settings. She stated that the organization
had been actively studying the conponents of healthy work
envi ronnent s. She shared that one conponent was the nurse's
ability to participate in the decision making about the work
environment, which included the types of shifts and the
flexibility of the work hours. She asked that consideration be
given for a nurse's ability to choose the work environnment. She
summarized that HB 50 would negatively inpact patient care and
nurses' satisfaction, as it would renove the choi ces.

4:07:11 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked if all registered nurses had the
heal th, stam na, and personality to work the |ong hours.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -11- March 12, 2009



4:08: 09 PM

M5. ARTUSO replied that nurses had the right to choose. She
noted the ineffectiveness of this legislation as nurses could
still work at two different institutions, in order to neet their
per sonal needs.

4:09: 05 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked if the hospital adm nistration brought
undue pressure on nurses to work.

4:09: 37 PM

M5. ARTUSO said that she had always been permtted to |eave

even in hospital settings with nmandatory overti ne. She al | owed
that she had heard stories, but had never seen it happen. She
opined that it was not happening in the overwhelmng mgjority of
cases.

4:10: 34 PM

MARY STACKHOUSE, Al aska Nurses Association, comented that the
work environment was "running people away from the bedside.”
She expressed that nurses' had autonony and responsibility for
their work perfornmance. She offered her opinion that mandatory
overtinme underm nes these obligations. She asked that the
| egislature protect the nurses' professional judgnent. She
enphasized that mandatory overtinme elimnated professiona
judgnent and autonony, vyet it still required professiona
accountability. She read from a resolution by the National
Council of State Boards of Nursing: "recognizes the professiona
responsibility of nurses to accept or decline overtine
assignments based on their self assessnent of ability to provide
safe care.” She shared that nmandatory overtime was used when
pati ent assignnents were heavy and staffing was a problem

4:14:51 PM

CAROL CLAUSSON said that she was a registered nurse. She
pointed out that it was very hard work, and that she was tired
at the end of her 12 hour shift. She noted that she was not as
mentally sharp when she was tired. She opined that mandatory
overtinme would worsen the nursing shortage. She said that she
supported HB 50.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -12- March 12, 2009



4:16:19 PM

Cl NDY ALKIRE, Assistant Chief Nurse Executive, Providence Al aska
Medi cal Center, said that Providence Al aska Medical Center did
not use nmandatory overtine, and instead, allowed nurses to bid
on overtinme if they desired. She considered that the on-call
part of the legislation was vague and would <create
m sinterpretations. She expl ained that the nedical center only
had three specialized areas which wutilized "on-call,"” the
avai lability to cone to work and care for patients within 30
m nut es. She spoke specifically about the Operating Room (OR)

She explained that there was always an OR team at the hospital

but in the event of a second energency, there would be a need

for a second team She disclosed that the need for quick
response was the reason for an "on-call" team She shared that
the agreement to be "on-call" for the three specialized areas
was clearly stated at hiring. She reported that nurses were
allowed to schedule their "on-call"” tine, but that this could be
affected by the interpretation of "on-call™ in HB 50. She
expl ai ned that, should "on-call" be interpreted to nmean the sane
as "work," this would |imt staff scheduling of "on-call" to
follow tinme actually worked. She offered that uni on

negoti ations were a better way to deal with this issue. [Letter
i ncluded in nmenbers' packets.]

4:22:12 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked if she was a nurse prior to becomng a
supervi sor.

M5. ALKI RE said that she was.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked if her attitude had changed when she
becanme a supervi sor

M5. ALKIRE said that her attitude had not changed. She said

that she becanme a nurse because she cared about patients. She
said that she did not want HB 50 to stop nurses when they wanted
to work. She agreed that nurses had the right to |eave when

they were tired. She offered her concern that HB 50 woul d take
away a nurse's choice and professional judgnent.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked if she would have given the sane
testi nony as a new nurse.

M5. ALKIRE indicated that she worked long shifts as a new nurse.
She said that she gave good care.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 13- March 12, 2009



4:25:08 PM

MARI LYN EDWARDS, Operating Room dinical Manager, Providence
Al aska Medical Center, shared that she had been a nurse for 31
years. She said that her immediate concerns were for a safe
wor k envi ronnent and safe quality patient outcones. She offered
her opinion that a "one size solution" prescribed in state |aw
to resolve mandatory nurse overtine would be devastating for
patients at Providence Medical Center. She detailed the
staffing schedule for the operating room at Providence. [Letter
i ncluded in nmenbers' packets.]

4:28:53 PM

ROGER LEWERENZ, RN, Providence Al aska Medical Center, said that
he was against the "on-call" section of HB 50. He expl ai ned
that he worked as a clinical educator in the heart center, that
this area was highly specialized, and that it required
approximately one year to fully train an experienced critica
care nurse. He reported that it was necessary to utilize an
"on-call" team as not all nurses had the necessary specialized
trai ni ng. He allowed that this produced a chronic shortage of
staff. He offered his opinion that the "on-call" schedul e was
"not that bad." He noted in his submtted witten testinony
that the "restrictions that would be inposed if this bill passes
woul d negatively inpact our ability to care for this patient
popul ation due to the unavailability of trained staff."” [Letter
i ncluded in nmenbers' packets.]

4. 32:46 PM

GENEVA  EDM STON, Associate  Adm ni strator, Denal i Cent er,
Fai r banks Menorial Hospital, said that she opposed HB 50, but
that she appreciated the intent of the bill to focus on patient
safety and nursing satisfaction. She expressed her disagreenent
with legislation as the neans of solution. She affirmed

awareness for the need to attract and retain registered nurses.
She said that Fairbanks Menorial Hospital hired the new nurse
graduates from University of Alaska Fairbanks (UAF) in support
for nursing services. She explained that the hospital would
spend the extra noney for travelling nurses and tenporary staff
to avoid the overtinme issue. She noted that only four hospitals
and nursing hones in Alaska reported using mandatory overtimne.

She agreed that the legislation was a "one size fits all"™ which
was not practical for Tribal and small comunity health
provi ders. She opined that it wuld have "unintended

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -14- March 12, 2009



consequences. " She concluded that this was "unneeded
| egislation at this tinme."

4:37:47 PM

BRENDA FRANZ, Director of |ICU and Energency, Fairbanks Menoria
Hospital, said that Fairbanks Menorial Hospital worked hard to
pronote nursing and that there was a culture of patient and
nurse safety. She stated that the hospital did not support
mandatory overtine, and that each area schedul ed col | aboratively
with its nursing staff.

4:38:39 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if there was a safety issue when
nurses were required to work longer than a continuous 14 hour
shift.

M5. FRANZ replied that Fairbanks Menorial Hospital did not
support mandatory overtine, but that they allowed the choice and
encouraged nurses to conmuni cate their needs.

4:39:14 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked to clarify that voluntary overtine
di d not inpinge safety.

M5. FRANZ replied that nurses made the decision for overtine
wor k.

4:39:52 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked if the refusal for overtine would
negatively inpact a nursing career.

M5. FRANZ said that there was not any retaliation. She
expressed the priority for a safe, healthy working environnent.

4:41: 52 PM

DONNA PHILLIPS, RN, said that she had been a registered nurse
for 30 years. She expressed her concern for the patients, and
she read from a prepared statement [Included in nmenbers'
packets.]:

The Institute of Medicine (IOVM report has identified
how long hours and fatigue contributes to errors in

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -15- March 12, 2009



heal t hcar e. These errors can cost |ives, or increase
length of stay in the hospital which in turn adds to
t he al ready bal | ooni ng cost of healthcare.

She urged support for HB 50.
4:43. 58 PM

JOHN BRI NGHURST, Adm nistrator, Petersburg Medical Center, said
that he had been the administrator at Petersburg Medical Center
for eleven years. He called attention to the small hospital
perspective and noted that the nurses had requested the switch
to 12 hour work shifts. He said that Petersburg Medical Center
did not have mandatory overtine and that there was no pressure
to work an additional shift. He shared that there was nmandatory
"on-call."”™ He explained that the emergency room was staffed by
the acute care nurse. If an incom ng case appeared difficult,
then the "on-call" nurse was sumoned to cover the nurses

stati on. He offered his belief that there was not any other
practical, economc way to staff the energency room He opi ned
that Al aska was being responsible in its [nedical] facility
staffing without |egislation, and that regulations were stifling
the [hospital] industry.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if the nurses went "on-call"”
i medi ately following a 12 hour shift.

MR. BRINGHURST replied that this was a decision nmade by each
nurse, but that the practice was to first ask the nurses who had
not worked that shift.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked how often a nurse worked nore than a
conti nuous 14 hour shift.

4:49: 17 PM

MR. BRI NGHURST replied that the nurses had the option to sign up
for an "on-call" shift which imediately followed a regular
shift.

4:49:41 PM

VENDY CONRADI, RN, said that she had been a registered nurse for
16 years. She said that simlar Washington State |egislation
had had a positive effect on patient care and nurse's |lives.
[ Letter included in nenbers' packets.]

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 16- March 12, 2009



4:50: 39 PM
The commttee took an at-ease from4:50 p.m to 4:51 p. m
4:51: 35 PM

ROD BETIT, President & CEO Alaska State Hospital and Nursing
Hone Association (ASHNHA), said that he represented 27 private,
tribal, state, and federal health facilities and they did not
support HB 50. He said that ASHNHA nenbers had a strong
commtnment to nursing, and that they did not use nandatory
overtime as a strategy to fulfill the staffing needs. He
reported that collective bargaining and informal agreenments were
used to reach solutions to staffing issues. He nentioned that
the latest survey indicated that there was not a lot of
mandatory overtinme. He reported that ASHNHA nenbers did not use
mandatory overtime as it was not good for patients or staff. He
cited that ASHNHA nenbers were showing a strong responsible
commtnment to patient care that was good for the patient and the
nur se.

4:55:23 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked if ASHNHA kept track of nurse
turnover rates within specific hospitals.

MR. BETIT, in response to Representative Coghill, said that the
vacancy rate was an annual average, but that it did not reflect
the total staff turnover in relation to the total staff.
REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL opined that the turnover rate and the
formal grievances filed mght give an indication of the msuse
of work tinelines.

MR. BETIT said that the Departnment of Labor had not received any
of these grievances.

4:57:10 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked how many Jlawsuits had been
prof fered based on nurse mal practice, and on what basis.

MR. BETIT said that he woul d ask.
4:57: 50 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked if mandatory overtinme was m ni nal

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -17- March 12, 2009



MR. BETIT said yes.
4:58: 14 PM

MR. BETIT, in response to Representative Lynn, said that the
bill was attenpting to place, in statute, one solution for work
schedul ing that would not work for every facility. He said that
there was not a problem with mandatory overtine that would
suggest the need for |egislation.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN concluded by stating that it was a problem
for sone people, hence the |egislation.

4:58: 51 PM
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked about the mandatory "on-call."

MR BETIT said that it was wused, and that it was used
differently in different situations. He el aborated that "on-
call" was nore often being used in specially trained staffing
units that could not be staffed all of the tine.

5:00: 24 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said that the legislation was to not
schedule for longer than 14 consecutive hours. He asked if
ASHNHA nenbers agreed that it was safe to work longer than a 14
hour shift.

MR, BETIT said that ASHNHA did not perceive this as a safety
i ssue.

5:01: 33 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON referred to the list of mandatory "on-
call s" each nonth, and asked if that was reasonable, even if it
occurred imredi ately after a regular shift.

MR. BETIT, in response to Representative Seaton, noted that an
"on-call" listing did not specify whether the nurse had actually
wor ked. He added that these "on-calls" were scheduled in
agreenent with the nursing staff.

5:02: 48 PM

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 18- March 12, 2009



REPRESENTATI VE LYNN conpared nursing to other occupations wth
hourly work limtations for safety, and asked why nurses would
not have these sane limtations.

MR. BETIT replied that each individual occupation had unique
reasons for this structure. He said that nursing was one
i nportant piece of the health care delivery system He agreed
that there were limts to what should be asked of nurses, and
that ASHNHA nenbers respected those limts, and allowed the
nurses the choice. He opined that HB 50 was attenpting to:

| egislate what an individual thinks their abilities
are, and where they want to practice in health care

and whether they want to work in a specialized unit,
knowing full well it takes sone on-call wth it
because of the nature of that wunit, or whether they
want to stay in a nore generalized unit where they can
work an 8 or 10 or 12 hour shift. So, the current |aw
gives us that flexibility, the current |aw gives |oca

hospi tal s, nursing hones, and nursing staff the
flexibility to work through that. W just don't see
any evidence that we need to do anything to legislate
something to limt that because the record is very
good, | think, in ternms of what we have put before you
as far as our hospitals' and our nursing hones'

per f or mance.

5:04:15 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN responded by concluding that those other
occupations with hourly limtations also deened that they could
safely work nore hours.

5:05:10 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES al | owed that she was attenpting to bal ance
bot h si des. She asked why the mandatory overtinme issue was
bei ng advocated so strongly, if it was not a problem

MR. BETIT agreed that ASHNHA nenbers were al so confused by this,
and that they did not understand the reasons behind the concern.
He reported that ASHNHA records showed no problens wth
mandat ory overtine. He shared a desire to know the reasons for
the concern, as collective bargaining should bring these issues
to the table. He reiterated that ASHNHA nenbers had stated a
commtrment to not inplenent mandatory overtine, and he asked how
t hat was being heard differently by nursing staff.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -19- March 12, 2009



5:07:30 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if ASHNHA represented Al aska
Psychiatric Institute (API).

MR. BETIT said that APl was a state operated facility and an
ASHNHA nenber, so that APl did report its data on the use of
mandatory overtinme. He did not know if APl had taken a position

on HB 50. He offered his belief that APl had received
additional funding for nursing salaries, and that they were
coordinating with private facilities for "on-call" staff.

5:08: 55 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON referred to prior testinony which stated
that APl was unsafe. He asked if those testinonies were
fabricated or truthful about the existing situation.

MR. BETIT offered his personal belief, not that of ASHNHA, that
the testinony was the truth. He shared that APl officials would
have stated that wages were very low, which made it difficult to
hire enough qualified staff. He explained that APl had not had
the sane financial tools as the private facilities to fill the
staffing vacanci es. He offered his belief that this issue had
recently been addressed and resol ved.

5:10:41 PM

LAUREE MORTON said that she was representing herself and her
parents. She allowed that she did not have any mmjor hospita
horror stories, but that many small indignities had occurred
during the nore than two years that she cared for her nother:
pain nedication that was admnistered incorrectly or not on-
time; or [lack of] assistance with use of the bathroom She
acknow edged that nurses wanted to do what was right. She
offered her belief that patients, as consunmers of the service,
were nore confident with shorter work shifts. She requested
that nursing staff be fresh, "on their toes,"” and ready to give
the best care possible. She agreed that these were tough
deci sions wthout easy answers, but should be weighed against
the call to do no harm She stipulated that the right of nurses
to decide their own schedul e should not be at the expense of the

patient. She suggested that hospitals make the schedule for
mandatory on-call to ensure that staff had the required rest
peri ods. She stressed that patient safety was the guiding
principle, and not a catch phrase. She enphasized that the

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 20- March 12, 2009



| egi sl ature should determine the length of work shift by what
was best for the patient. [Letter included in nenbers’
packets. ]

5:17:11 PM

CO CHAI R KELLER cl osed public testinmony. [HB 50 was hel d over.]

5:17:45 PM
ADJ OURNMENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Health and Social Services Standing Conmittee neeting was
adjourned at 5:17 p. m

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -21- March 12, 2009



